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PART A : GENERAL INFORMATION 

_________________________________________________________ 

A. 1 LUTHULI MUSEUM’S GENERAL INFORMATION

Entity’s Registered Name Luthuli Museum 

Physical Address 3233 Nokukhanya Luthuli Street 
Groutville  
KWADUKUZA 
4450 
KwaZulu Natal Province  
Republic of South Africa  

Postal Address PO Box 1869 
KWADUKUZA 
4450 

Contact Telephone Numbers +27 32 559 6822 / 23

Email Address luthulimuseum@luthulimuseum.org.za 

Website Address www.luthulimuseum.org.za 

Internal Auditors MORAR Inc. Chartered Accountants SA. 
Ukukhanya Advisory Services  

External Auditors AGSA 

Bankers Information First National Bank 

A.2 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AA Accounting Authority 

ARC Audit and Risk Committee 

AO Accounting Officer 

APP Annual Performance Plan 

AR Annual Report 

APR Annual Performance Report 

AFS Annual Financial Statements 
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AGSA Auditor General of South Africa 

DSAC Department of Sports, Arts and Culture 

EA Executive Authority 

FINCOM Finance Committee 

GRAP General Accounting Standards 

HRREMCO Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 

IA Internal Auditors 

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

MRCOM Marketing and Research Committee 

SP Strategic Plan 
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Prof. Mxolisi Mchunu 

A.3 FOREWORD BY THE MUSEUM COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON

_________________________________________________________

We close this 2023-24 financial year in memory of 
our late Chairperson of Council, Mr I Mkhize who 
diligently and with commitment led this entity since 
2018. May his soul rest in peace. A new member has 
been appointed by the Minister to replace Mr Mkhize. 
This ensures that there is proper representation 
within Council from a governance point of view. 

The Museum has again achieved an unqualified 
audit outcome for 2023-24 financial year, a notable 
achievement. Further work and effort is required 
from management to achieve a clean audit.  

The Minister of DSAC has seen fit to extend our 
Council term of office for another year. I believe that 
is in consideration of the pending amalgamation of 
entities and formation of flagship institutions. The 
amalgamation process is not yet concluded.  

The extension of our term of Council has provided an opportunity to enable the Museum to reflect and 
finalize some of the important work we had pursued as an oversight body.  

We close this reporting year with the end of term of the 6th administration of government and the 5-
year MTSF.  The Museum is nearing its mark of 20 Years since it was established. I believe as this 
Council we have achieved a lot in elevating the legacy of Chief Albert Luthuli. A Memorandum of 
Understanding was signed with Solusi University in Zimbabwe thus opening another chapter in the 
global footprints of Chief Albert Luthuli.   

Another leg of Luthuli’s life (and impact) in the United States of America beckons the Museum. An 
edited publication reflecting on the Albert Luthuli Memorial Lectures’ 15 years milestone is in the 
making for delivery in 2025. Financially and operationally the Museum remains on sound footing with 
promises of greater prospects in years to come. The Council has laid the foundation for the Museum 
to begin the integration of the life of Mrs. Nokukhanya Luthuli into the storyline and interpretation of 
the heritage site. As Council we note and support the reopening of the inquest into the 21 July 1967 
death of Chief Albert Luthuli. We hope that the truth about what happened that fateful day 57 years 
ago will finally be revealed. I believe that the Luthuli Museum has done well in the past 5 years to 
fulfill its mandate. Our midterm assessment of the Museum performance was revealing in that regard.  

I thank my colleagues within Council and management of the Museum for their dedication and 
commitment to the quest to grow this institution and the legacy of Chief Albert Luthuli, freedom fighter 
and Africa’s first Nobel Peace Laureate.  

May the Spirit of Luthuli Speak to All! 

__________________________

Prof. Mxolisi Mchunu  

Chairperson: Luthuli Museum Council  
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Mr Brian Xaba 

A.4 MUSEUM DIRECTOR OVERVIEW

___________________________________________________________

The Luthuli Museum had a notable performance in 
the 2023-2024 financial year with respect to fulfilling 
its mandate of upholding the legacy of Chief Albert 
Luthuli and fulfilling its strategic outcomes, namely, 
efficiency and effectiveness in operations, 
accessibility and dissemination of information about 
the Museum and Chief Albert Luthuli; inclusive and 
empowered communities.  

The Museum’s performance this continued to focus 
on several key areas. These were educational 
outreach and community engagement programmes; 
exhibitions and collections; collaborations and 
partnerships; infrastructure and maintenance; 
profiling the legacy of Chief Albert Luthuli and lastly, 
financial performance and compliance.   

Educational and community engagements included 
programmes with schools like the, the coding 
competitions; schools’ chess programme; spell bee; 
the Inkosi Albert Luthuli Oral History Competition; 
live music workshops and many more.  

The food garden project, the ‘Night at the Museum’ young girls programme and youth training activities 
on film making, entrepreneurial skills, creative writing, visual art techniques, served well for the museum 
in terms of capacity building for young people interested in life skill training.  

In sharing of knowledge about Chief Albert Luthuli exhibitions like the Nobel Peace Award and the 
Amasosha kaLuthuli (which had a traveling component) served the Museum was able to foster a deeper 
understanding of South Africa’s history and the principles of democracy and human rights. The Nobel 
Peace Award as an online exhibition expanded the reach of the museum far and beyond South Africa. 
Our museum library books collections was boosted with the acquisition of books relevant to the history 
of South Africa, its road to democracy and the quest for a transformed society as envisioned by those 
who fought for freedom. A milestone for the Museum this reporting year was the publishing and launch 
of a book on Chief Albert Luthuli by one of the elders in Groutville, Rev. Dr Chris Mzoneli. The book, 
which has been almost five (5) years in the making, is titled, Chief Albert Luthuli: A Personal Tribute.
The Museum has embarked on two oral history projects with local elders from Groutville and also 
KwaMaphumulo to record and document what one of them called ‘continued marginalized histories of 
ordinary South Africans. These projects promise to unearth important recollections that will weave new 
regional knowledge into South Africa’s tapestry of the country’s road to democracy.  

Partnerships and collaborations are essential to promoting inclusiveness, alleviation of expenses for 
both parties and achievement of a heightened programme impact. The structuring and nurturing of 
these partnerships and collaborations is imperative for any organization’s operational longevity. The 
Luthuli Museum’s sustained lifespan since its establishment on 21 August 2004 has had to recognize 
this reality. This reporting year notable partnerships and collaborations included but not limited to, the 
Gcinamasiko Heritage Trust, the Happiness Foundation, the Groutville Jazz Club, the Solusi University 
in Bulawayo, Zimbabwe; the Ward 10 Committee in Groutville, Enterprise iLembe (district development 
agency); the local municipality, universities (UKZN; UNISA, UNIZUL), the Luthuli family, including our 
sister museums. Much was achieved in 2023-2024 by the Museum on a broader scale through these 
engagements. Of notable achievement, were the inaugural iLembe Book Festival that took place during 
the fourth quarter of our reporting year; and the Presidential Employment Stimulus Project (PESP) 
funding which enabled the museum (working with young visual artists) to be beautify the memorial site 
along the uMvoti River, where Chief Albert Luthuli was fatally injured on 21 July 1967.  
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There were several infrastructure repair and maintenance projects undertaken by the museum during 
this reporting year. Much of it was preventative maintenance to address deterioration and preserving 
the integrity of the facilities over time. More so, such interventions ensure a safe and aesthetically 
pleasing environment for visitors to the museum. The Luthuli 1927 Historic House, our main 
attraction, remains partially closed off to the public as the stages of the refurbishment work are 
implemented.  

On the financial side, the museum has managed to use its resources effectively, focusing on 
optimizing the available budget to ensure sustainability of its operations and programmes. There 
remains the challenge for the museum to explore new funding opportunities to support its activities. 
Other areas that present opportunity for further intervention include, for example, staff training and 
development, marketing research to measure the impact of our service and diverse audience 
development, effective alignment of our work with legislation applicable to the nature of our work. 
Visitor numbers have grown this reporting year and are back to the pre-2020 growth trajectory. The 
Museum will need to align its operations to this new development in terms of facilities and human 
resource capacity.   

On behalf of the Museum and its management team, I look forward to a new financial year which 
starts the new MTSF and another milestone in the journey to build a heritage institution befitting the 
stature of a leader like Chief Albert Mvumbi Luthuli and Mrs. Nokukhanya ‘MaBhengu’ Luthuli.  

__________________________ 

Mr Brian Xaba  

Director: Luthuli Museum  
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A.4 (1) INCOME AND STAFF COSTS

STATE GRANT 

A.4 (2) ANNUAL VISITOR NUMBERS

Grade 4 learners from North Coast Primary School, during one of their annual visits to Luthuli Museum.  

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 

R14 915 000 R 17 058 660 R17 700 290 R17 689 000 

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 

 15 305 27 584 35 495 44 853 
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A.5 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF

THE ACCURACY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amount disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual 
financial statements audited by the Auditor General.  

The annual report is complete, accurate and free from any omissions. 

The annual report is prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by the National Treasury.  

The annual financial statements (Part F) have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP 
standards applicable to the entity. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation 
of the annual financial statements and the judgement made in this information.  

The accounting officer is responsible for establishing and establishing a system of internal 
control has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability 
of the performance information, the human resource information, and the annual financial 
statements.  

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements.  

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, performance information, the 
human resources information and the financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended 
31 March 2024.  

Yours faithfully, 

_________________________ _____________________________________ 

Mr Brian Xaba  Prof. Mxolisi Mchunu   

Director: Luthuli Museum Chairperson: Luthuli Museum Council  

Date:  Date: 
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A.6 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

A.6. (1) VALUE PROPOSITION, CORE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Strategic Focus of the Luthuli Museum as a custodian of the legacy of Chief Albert 
Luthuli is premised on the following value proposition, core products and services:     

A.6.(2) VISION:      A Transformed Society inspired by the values and ideals of Chief Albert Luthuli 

A.3.(3) MISSION:   To Preserve; Educate; Promote; Grow and Sustain the Legacy of Chief Albert Luthuli 

To bring about its Mission into practice, the Luthuli Museum commits itself to the following offerings: 

▪ Museum conservation; research and collection for the beneficiation of present and future generations.

▪ Production; documentation and enabled access to the knowledge about the legacy of Chief Albert
Luthuli and the concept of a museum and its value.

▪ Create an awareness and appreciation about the legacy of Chief Albert Luthuli.

A.3. (4) VALUES 

In recognition of the ethos and philosophy of Chief Albert Luthuli, the Museum commits to deliver its value 
proposition; core products and services informed by the following values: 

▪ Selflessness

▪ Transparency

▪ Integrity

▪ Inclusivity

▪ Respect

▪ Responsiveness

▪ Batho Pele

▪ Accountability

▪ Excellence in Leadership
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A.7 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES  

The following legislation and other mandates are applicable to the Luthuli Museum. 

7.1 Specifically, the sections of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa have a direct 
bearing on the Luthuli Museum’s mandate are; Section 16(1): Freedom of expression (freedom 
of artistic creativity; freedom to receive or impart information or ideas, academic freedom and 
freedom of scientific research); Section 30: Language and Culture; Section 32(1): Access to 
information; Section 9(3): Equality; Section 10: Human dignity and  Section 31 of the 
Constitution affirms that the right of persons belonging to a cultural, religious or linguistic 
community is applicable to museums. 

7.2 Sector specific Legislative Framework and Regulations include; Cultural Institutions Act (Act 
No. 119 of 1999) as amended; South African Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act 25 of 1999), 
as amended; Government Immovable Asset Management Act, 2007 (Act 19 of 2007), as 
amended; Intellectual Property Rights Act (2008); Tourism (Act 3 of 2014), as amended; the 
Patents Act 57 of 1978; the Copyright Act 98 of 1978 and the Trademarks Act 194 of 1993.  

7.3 Broad Governance and regulations inter alia include;  the Public Finance Management Act (Act 
No. 1 of 1999) as amended; National Treasury Regulations and Guidelines (as published); 
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act No. 5 of 2000); the Public Administration
Management Act (Act 11 of 2014); National Development Plan Vision 2030; Revised White
Paper on Arts, Culture and Heritage; African Union Agenda 2063; the Intergovernmental
Relations Framework Act (2005); the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993; Labour
Relations Act, 1995; National Archives Act, 1996; the Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 
1997;  the Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000;  Employment Equity Act, 1998;  the 
Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004; the Preferential Procurement Policy
Framework Act, 2000;  Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000; White Paper on
Transforming Public Service Delivery (Batho-Pele White Paper), 1997 and the National Youth
Policy (2015-2020).  

Museum Research Officer (2nd from left) Mr Mthunzi Zungu with members (standing) of 
the Groutville Oral History Project. From L-R, Dr. Joe Ndaba; Mr. Linda Msomi; Rev. Ben 
Ndaba and Mr Sibusiso Mthembu. Seated is Rev. BK Dludla who was interviewed. 
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PART B : PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

_________________________________________________________ 

B. 1 SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

B.1.2 Service Delivery Environment 

The heritage sector continues to be in a state of change and adjustment like many 
things in the country informed by the need to achieve efficiency, value for money and 
improve public service. The amalgamation process of the Department of Sport, Arts 
and Culture to establish museum flagships under the same theme continues steadily. 
The newly opened locally KwaDukuza Museum in Stanger indicates the growing 
need for heritage, arts and culture subjects within schools in the country. We believe 
that the next 5-year strategic framework brings more exciting developments in the 
heritage space worth celebrating.    

B.1.3 Organizational Environment 

The growing public interest in the Luthuli Museum, especially regarding the booking 
of the venue by the public for events, has placed pressure on staff capacity. The 
resignation of the Human Resources Practitioner has resulted in a backlog in terms of 
human resources work. The position will soon be filled, and the organization will 
again be back on track regarding HR matters. Much reflection will need to be done in 
the new financial year to align the nature of the work done by the Luthuli Museum 
with its policies and procedures. This will require a steady and focused approach on 
the part of the museum, the management and staff working together.  

B.1.4 Key Policy Development 

There are no key policy developments for reporting. 

Prof. Thandabantu Nhlapo delivering the 2023 Chief Albert Luthuli Memorial Lecture at the 
University of KwaZulu Natal, Westville Campus on Saturday, 09 December 2023.  
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B.2    PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE 

B.2.1    DESCRIPTION OF EACH PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVE 

A. PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION 

B. Subprogramme (A): Governance 

 Description: Responsible for governance, management and 
accountability for overall Museum operations and 
resources in compliance with the PFMA; Cultural 
Institutions Act and other compliance legislation. 
The office is supported by a Personal Assistant to 
the Accounting Officer.   

 Purpose: Ensure that the organization is compliant with 
applicable legislative prescripts and Accounting 
Authority (Council) oversight responsibility with 
respect to the organization’s mandate and strategic 
objectives.  

II. Subprogramme (B): Support Services

Description: This subprogramme includes all organizational 
support services that have cross cutting implications 
in terms of organizational efficiency and effective 
implementation of its mandate. This subprogramme 
includes Financial Management (FM); Supply Chain 
Management (SCM); Human Resources 
Management (HRM); Information Communication 
Technology (ICT); Legal Services (LS); Safety and 
Security Services (SS)).  

Purpose: Provide the necessary administrative support 
services for the organization in terms of 
procurement of goods and services; financial 
processes and reporting; human resources 
management; compliance with ICT governance 
framework; performance of service level 
agreements; security reporting and design input for 
displays and marketing collateral.  

III. Subprogramme (C): Facilities management and development 

Description: Concerned with all site maintenance activities and 
development of new infrastructure in line with the 
changing mandate of the organization. This 
subprogramme includes the annual Repair and 
Maintenance Programme (RAMP) and the long-
term User Asset Management Plan (UAMP).  

Purpose: Ensure that the Museum buildings and site are well 
maintained, and that the facility is aligned to the 
organization’s long-term vision and mission to 
increase operational capacity. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
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___________________________________________________________________ 

C. PROGRAMME 2: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

I. Subprogramme: Collections Management 

Description: The sub-programme is concerned with the maintenance of 
museum collections or heritage assets in line with 
international standards of best practice and compliance with 
GRAP 103.   

Purpose: To ensure that the collection is accessioned and catalogued; 
digitized for ease of access; implemented conservation 
standards; verified accordingly for auditing purposes as per 
GRAP 103 prescripts.   

II. Subprogramme: Research and Exhibitions 

Description: The subprogramme focus is on research areas mapping and 
development of new knowledge on the life and times of Chief 
Albert Luthuli to inform; educate and enhance visitor 
experience through exhibitions 

Purpose: Conduct research to support organization mandate with 
respect to the development and production of exhibitions; 
publications; research papers; collections development; 
academic study and public inquiry.   

III. Subprogramme: Education 

Description: Concerned with the support and promotion of the legacy of 
Chief Albert Luthuli through public intellectual dialogue; 
publications and scholarship support.   

Purpose: Organize seminars; lectures; conferences; colloquia; develop 
publications and also implement the education / scholarship 
programme for academic excellence.    

___________________________________________________________________ 
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___________________________________________________________________ 

D. PROGRAMME 3: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

I. Subprogramme: Marketing  

Description: The programme primary responsibility is to promote and 
profile the Museum by applying media and marketing 
principles and techniques. 

Purpose: Develop; implement & manage Museum marketing 
programmes and campaigns with the aim to promote and 
profile the organization and by so doing create wider public 
awareness and increase visitor numbers.   

II. Subprogramme: Social Media 

Description: Increased and sustained museum social media presence; 
impact and monitoring.  

Purpose: Ensure that that organization’s public programmes; events; 
campaigns and all other activities are featured on all social 
media platforms supported by approved monitoring and 
reporting systems.  

III. Subprogramme: Education and Tours 

Description: Organized Museum learner education programmes; visitor 
tours and public programmes.  

Purpose: Develop and manage innovative and interesting education 
programmes for learners; public and enhance visitor 
experience through informative and exciting tours.  

IV. Subprogramme: Public Relations 

Description: Public relations and stakeholder relations management  

Purpose: Develop and implement a public relations programme and 
campaigns intended to communicate and build positive 
relationships with stakeholders; media and the public.  

V. Subprogramme: Shared Value Programmes 

Description: Management of Museum public relations & public 
programmes  

Purpose: Develop and implement community outreach programmes 
that assist in the promotion of the museum; building a diverse 
audience and maintaining public relations and programmes in 
conjunction with the Marketing Manager & Education officer  

VI. Subprogramme: Design Development 

Description: Design & production support for marketing collateral; 
exhibition development & publications.  

Purpose: Provide conceptual; creative & innovative technical support in 
the design & production of publications; exhibitions; 
promotional material to profile; inform and educate about the 
work of the Luthuli Museum.  

_____________________________________________________________ 
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Solusi University Vice Chancellor Prof B Baidya and Luthuli Museum Council Chairperson Prof M
Mchunu signing the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on 02 November 2023 between 
the University and the Museum. Onlooking are Dr C Banda from Solusi, Mrs. V Luthuli, Mr B 
Xaba, Dr A Luthuli and Mr J Matlou, a member of the Museum Council. 

Luthuli Museum PRO Ms Z Nyembe (corner left) and Ms Dudu Busani, (ILembe Book Festival 
organising member) at BW Vilakazi Primary School distributing books for learners donated by the
Web Foundation/Siyafunda. 
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C.5.9 AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

This report is provided by the Audit Committee in respect to the 2023/2024 financial year of 
the Luthuli Museum, as required by section 76 of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 
of 1999, as amended (PFMA) read with the Treasury Regulations 3.1.9 and 27.1 issued in 
terms of the PFMA.  

C.5.9.1 Audit Committee Members and Meetings Attendance 

NO. MEETING DATE ATTENDEES 

1. 25-May-23 Q4 Part 1 Meeting 
(this incl. APR and AFS review)

Ms. W Oelofse (Chairperson) 
Ms. F Nchabeleng  
Mr. J Matlou 

2. 08-June-23 Q4 Part 2 Meeting Ms. W Oelofse (Chairperson) 
Ms. F Nchabeleng  
Mr. J Matlou 

3. 05-September-23 Q1 Meeting Ms. W Oelofse (Chairperson) 
Ms. F Nchabeleng  
Mr. J Matlou  

4. 07-September-23 Special
Meeting 
AR 22/23 Review

Ms. W Oelofse (Chairperson) 
Mr. J Matlou  
Ms. F Nchabeleng  

5. 24-10-23 Q2 Meeting Ms. W Oelofse (Chairperson) 
Ms. F Nchabeleng  
Mr. J Matlou  
Mr. T Maphanga  

6. 22-February-24 Q3 Meeting Ms. W Oelofse   (Chairperson) 
Ms. F Nchabeleng  
Mr. J Matlou  
Mr. T Maphanga  

7. 27-Februrary-24 Q3 meeting
Part 2

Ms. W Oelofse   (Chairperson) 
Ms. F Nchabeleng  
Mr. J Matlou  
Mr. T Maphanga 
Ms. S Masango 

C.5.9.2 Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 51(1)(ii) 
and 77 of the PFMA read with Treasury Regulation 3.1.10, 27.1.7 and 27.1.8 and reports 
that it has operated in terms of the Audit Committee Charter.  

C.5.9.3 Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Internal Controls 

Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee with assurance that the internal controls in 
place at the Luthuli Museum are efficient and effective. The system of internal controls 
for financial and risk management in place at Luthuli Museum is partially effective and 
efficient, and the controls have shown some improvement in the year under review.  
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The system of internal controls is also in line with the requirements of the PFMA and the 
principles of the King IV Report on Corporate Governance. 

The ARC assessment of the system of internal controls was formed based on the 
Internal Audit reports tabled at the ARC meetings during the year under review, and the 
Auditor General Audit Report and Management Report. Deficiencies in the internal 
control system were highlighted in reports from both IA and AGSA. Management has 
committed to implement corrective action and these commitments will be monitored by 
the Audit Committee on a regular basis in the year ahead. 

The Luthuli Museum incurred Irregular Expenditure in the year under review. 
Management has provided the ARC with regular reports on the Irregular Expenditure 
incurred and the processes put in place to limit the reoccurrence thereof. Progress has 
been made on the regularisation of all contracts as well as the planning of expenditure, 
and ARC believe that these measures together with regular review and oversight, will 
significantly reduce the instances of Irregular Expenditure in the future.   

The Luthuli Museum has anti-corruption measures in place which aim to curb the 
frequency and magnitude of fraud and corruption. There have been no reported 
instances of fraud or corruption in the year under review. ARC has recommended the 
drafting and implementation of a Whistleblower policy and Management have committed 
to implementing this. The ARC is satisfied that the Museum maintains adequate 
prevention of fraud and corruption controls and this risk is continually monitored. 

The ARC is aware of the risks surrounding the Information and Communication 
Technology (ICT) and the effectiveness of the ICT governance structure. Management 
has made progress in the strengthening of the controls over ICT and the ARC will 
monitor the progress made in the year ahead. 

C.5.9.4 Internal Audit Function 

The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Charter and the Internal 
Audit Plan. The Audit Committee considers the Internal Audit Function to be optimally 
resourced. During the financial year under review, the Internal Audit function was 
performed by external service providers, Morar Inc. and  Ukukhanya Advisory Services.  

The Audit Committee assessed the internal audit function to be efficient, responsive to 
external audit findings and other emerging risks and provides reports of a high quality to 
Management and the Audit Committee in a timely manner.  

The Audit Committee supports the direction that the current Internal Auditors have 
adopted in providing the necessary skills and agility required for the function to respond 
efficiently and effectively to strengthen controls within the museum.  

C.5.9.5 External Audit Function 

In terms of PFMA, the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA) is the appointed external 
auditor. During the 2019/20 financial year, the AGSA has performed the external audit 
using an external service provider, whilst maintaining responsibility for the audit.  

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the external auditor is independent of the Museum 
and can confirm that the External Auditor did not provide any non-audit services. 

The AGSA is mandated by the Public Audit Act No. 25 of 2004 to conduct audits in 
accordance with the International Standards on Auditing.  

The AGSA adopted the International Federation of Accountants’ Code of Ethics and 
International Organisation of Supreme Audit Institutions’ Code of Ethics to ensure that 
the audits are conducted in an ethical manner and in accordance with the code. These 
codes require the AGSA to identify threats to independence and put mitigating measures 
in place.  
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The Audit Committee among other matters: 

a) Recommended the approval of the external audit engagement letter, the audit plan
and the budgeted audit fees payable to the AGSA; and

b) Considered whether any reportable irregularities were identified and reported by the
External Auditors in terms of the Auditing Profession Act.

c) The Audit Committee has met with the External Auditors to ensure there are no
unresolved issues.

C.5.9.6 Risk Management 

Risk management is the identification, assessment, and prioritisation of risks and the 
application of resources to minimise, monitor, and control the probability and/or impact of 
the risks. The ARC is responsible for the oversight of the internal and external audit 
function and financial reporting. The assessment of internal controls over financial 
reporting is risk-based, and as a result the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing 
management’s risk policies and discussing the Museum’s key risk exposures with 
management. 

Internal Audit does not assume the functions, systems and processes of risk 
management but assists management in the monitoring of risks in the Museum through 
its own assurance processes and the progress made by the Museum in managing their 
risk. 

Management undertook a detailed review of the risks of Luthuli Museum during the year 
under review and this review was attended by ARC. Management updated the Risk 
Registers, recorded mitigating controls and reported to the ARC on a regular basis on the 
progress made with the implementation of mitigating controls.  

Management also reported on any emerging risks identified as part of their regular risk 
review. There are no significant emerging risks that require highlighting. 

C.5.9.7 Evaluation of the Finance Function 

The ARC relies on the Finance Function to deliver quality financial reports in a timely 
manner to enable it to have effective oversight over the financial and governance 
structures of the Museum.  

The Finance Function has shown improvement in the reporting provided to the ARC in 
the year under review. The ARC has made some recommendations to management 
regarding regular review and oversight and will monitor the quality of reporting in the year 
ahead.   

C.5.9.8 Performance Management 

As part of the responsibility of the Audit Committee includes the review of performance 
management. The Audit Committee has: 

a) Reviewed and commented on the compliance with statutory requirements and
performance management best practices and standards.

b) Reviewed and commented on the relevance of indicators and recommended
enhancements to ensure they are measurable; and

c) Reviewed the quarterly performance reports submitted by Management, having been
reviewed by Internal Audit.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the performance report has been prepared in terms 
of PFMA and other related regulations.  
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PART D : HUMAN RESOURCES  

_________________________________________________________ 

D.1 Introduction

The Museum continues with efforts in developing human resource capacity to align with the growth and 
development of the organisation in the fulfilling of its mandate. The HRREMCO’s support and guidance has 
ensured that human resources challenges encountered by the Museum in fulfilling its mandate are addressed 
fully and in line with best practices in human resource management.   

D.2 HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

D.2.1 Personnel Costs by programme / activity / objective 

D.2.2 Personnel cost by salary band

Level  
Personnel 

Expenditure 
(R’000)  

% Of personnel 
exp. to total 

personnel cost 
(R’000)  

No. of employees  

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000) 

Top Management 
0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 
1,317 13,1% 1 1,317 

Professional qualified 
2,443 24,4% 3 814,3 

Skilled 
3,805 38,1% 6 638,2 

Semi-skilled 
1,702 17% 7 243,1 

Unskilled 
728 7,3% 3 242,7 

TOTAL 
9,995 99,9% 20 3,255 

Programme/ 
activity/ 

objective 

Total Expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000) 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Personnel 
expenditure as 

a % of total 
expenditure. 

(R’000) 

No. of 
employees Average personnel 

cost per employee 
(R’000)  

Programme 1 6,415 6,341 78,3% 11 576 

Programme 2 1,339 2,679 33,1% 7 383 

Programme 3 342 975 12% 2 479 

TOTAL 8,096 9,995 123,4% 20 1,438 
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D.2.3 Performance Rewards 

Programme/Activity/ 
Objective  

Performance 
Rewards 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 
% of performance 
rewards to total 
personnel cost 

(R’000) 

Top Management None _ _ 

Senior Management 
None 

_ 
 _ 

Professional qualified 
None 

_ 
 _ 

Skilled 
None 

_ 
 _ 

Semi-skilled 
None 

_ 
 _ 

Unskilled 
None 

_ 
 _ 

TOTAL None  
 _  _ 

D.2.4 Training Costs 

Programme/ 
activity/ 

objective 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

as a % of 
Personnel 

Cost. 

No. of 
employees 

Average 
training cost 

per 
employee 

Programme 1 6,341 55 0.9% 15 3,7% 

Programme 2 2,679 20 0.7% 3 6,7% 

Programme 3 
975 7 0.7% 2 3,5% 

TOTAL 
9,995 77 2,3% 20 13,9% 
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D.2.5 Employment and Vacancies 

Programme/ 
activity/ 

objective 

2023/2024 
No. of 

Employees 

2023/2024 
Approved 

Posts 

2023/2024 
No. of 

Employees 
2023/2024 
Vacancies 

% of 
vacancies 

Programme 1 9 9 9 1  5% 
Programme 2 2 2 2 0  0 
Programme 3 9 9 9 0  0 

TOTAL 20 20 20 1  5% 

D.2.6 Employment Changes 

Salary Band  
Employment 
at beginning 
of period  

Appointments Terminations Employment at 
end of the 

period 

Top Management 
0 

0 0 

0 

0 

Senior Management 
0 

0 0 

0 

0 

Professional 
qualified 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

Skilled 449 0 1 

0 

0 

Semi-skilled 
0 

0 0 

0 

0 

Unskilled 
0 

0 0 

0 

0 

TOTAL 
449 

0 1 
0 

0 
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D.2.7 Reasons for staff leaving 

Reason  Number  
% of total no. of staff 

leaving 

Death 
_ _ 

Resignation 1  _ 

Dismissal  _  _ 

Retirement _  _ 

Ill health _  _ 

Expiry of contract _  _ 
Other _ _ 

TOTAL  _  _ 

D.2.8 Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

Nature of disciplinary Action  
Number 

Verbal Warning 
0 

Written Warning 
0 

Final Written warning 
0 

Dismissal 
0 
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D.2.9 Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

D.2.9.1 Male 

D.2.9.2 Female 

Level  
MALE 

African Coloured Indian White 

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target 

Top 
Management _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Senior 
Management 

1  
_ _ _ 

 _ 
_ _ 

Professional 
qualified 

1  
_ _ _ 

 _ 
_ _ 

Skilled 
2  

_ 1 _ _ 
 _ 

_ _ 

Semi-skilled 
3 

_ _ _ 
 _ 

_ _ 

Unskilled 
1 

_ _ _ 
 _ 

_ _ 

TOTAL  8  _ 1 
_ _ 

 _ 
_ _ 

Level  
FEMALE 

African Coloured Indian White 

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target 

Top 
Management _ _ 0 _ _ _ _ _ 

Senior 
Management 

2 
_ 0 _ _ 

 _ 
_ _ 

Professional 
qualified 

 _ 
_ 0 _ _ 

 _ 
_ _ 

Skilled 
2 

_ 0 _ _ 
 _ 

_ _ 

Semi-skilled 
5 

_ 0 _ _ 
 _ 

_ _ 

Unskilled 
2 

_ 0 _ _ 
 _ 

_ _ 

TOTAL  11  _ 
0 _ _ 

 _ 
_ _ 
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D.2.9.3  Disabled 

Levels  
DISABLED STAFF 

MALE  FEMALE  

Current Target Current Target 

Top 
Management _ _ _ _ 

Senior 
Management 

_ 
_ _ 

 _ 
Professional 
qualified 

 _ 
_ _ 

 _ 
Skilled 

_ 
_ _ 

 _ 
Semi-skilled 

_ 
_ _ 

 _ 
Unskilled 

_ 
_ _ 

 _ 

TOTAL 
 _  _ 

_ 
 _ 
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PART E : PFMA COMPLIANCE REPORT  

_________________________________________________________

E. 1 INTRODUCTION

This section provides guidance on the information to be included in the annual report guide relating to PFMA 
compliance requirements. This is information disclosure on irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, and material 
Losses. The Museum did not have any material losses through criminal conduct or being written off; has had no 
investigations or criminal nor disciplinary steps taken because of wasteful expenditure. A Determination Test was 
completed for the 2020/21 financial year and is pending consequence management. The Determination Test for the 
2021/22 is pending and also for 2022/23 irregular expenditure.  

E.2 Disclosure of Irregular Expenditure

a) Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure

Description 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Opening balance 6,918 9,129 

Add: Irregular expenditure confirmed 2,211 838 

Less: Irregular expenditure condoned 0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure not condoned and removed 0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure recoverable 0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure not recovered and written off 0 0 

Closing balance 9,129 9,967 

b) Reconciling Notes

Description 2022/ 23 2023 / 24 
R’000 R’000 

Irregular Expenditure that was under assessment in 2021/2022 1,668 3,879 

Irregular expenditure that relates to 2021/2022 and identified in 

2022/2023 

5,250 5,250 

Irregular expenditure for the current year 2,211 838 

Total 9,129 9,967 

c) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure (under assessment,
determination, and investigation)

Description 2022/ 2023 2023/ 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure under assessment 1,668 7,756 

Irregular expenditure under determination 5,250 2,211 

Irregular expenditure under investigation 0 0 

Total 6,918 9,967 
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d) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure condoned.

Description 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure condoned 0 0 

Total 0 0 

e) Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure removed – (not condoned).

Description 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure NOT condoned and removed 0 0 

Total 0 0 

E.3 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

a) Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Description 2022 / 2023 2023/ 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Opening balance 17 17 

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure confirmed 0 0 

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off 0 0 

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable 0 0 

Closing balance 17 17 

b) Reconciling notes

Description 2022 / 2023 2023/ 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure that was under assessment in 

2022/2023  

17 17 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure that relates to 2022/2023 and identified 

in 2023/24 

0 0 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the current year 0 0 

Total 17 17 
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c) Details of current and previous fruitless and wasteful expenditure (under
assessment, determination, and investigation)

Description 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 
R’000 R’000 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under assessment 17 17 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under determination 0 0 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under investigation 0 0 

Total 17 17 

E.4 Information on late and / or non-payment of suppliers 

a) Reconciliation of invoices

Description Number of 
invoices 

Consolidated 
value 
R’000 

Valid invoices received 924 8,096 

Invoices paid within 30 days or agreed period 0 0 

Invoices paid after 30 days or agreed period 0 0 

Invoices older than 30 days or agreed period (unpaid 
and without dispute) 

0 0 

Invoices older than 30 days or agreed period (unpaid 
and in dispute)  

0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure not recovered and written 

off  

0 0 

Closing balance 924 8,096 

E.5 Information on the Supply Chain Management matters

a) Procurement by other means

Project Description Name of supplier Type of 
procurement by 
other means  

Contract number Value of 
contract 

R’000 
Internal Audit Services Ukukhanya Advisory 

Services 

RFQ Process N/A 183 

Security Guarding 
Services  

Siyejabula Security 
Services 

Tender Process LM01/20/02 245 

ICT Support and 
Hosting 

Boss Technical Solution RFQ Process LM01/2021/03  252 
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b) Contract variations and expansions

Project 
Description 

Name of 
supplier 

Contract 
modification 
type (Expansion 
or variation) 

Contract 
number 

Original 
Value of 
contract 

Value of 
previous 
contract 
expansion/s 
or variation (if 
applicable) 

Value of 
current 
contract 
expansion 
or variation 

R’000 R’000 R’000 
Security 
Guarding 
Services 

Siyejabula 
Security 
Services 

Tender Process LM01/20/02 1,474 245 1,719 

ICT Support 
and Hosting 

Boss Technical 
Solution 

RFQ Process LM01/2021/03  430 252 682 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 0 0 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 0 0 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 0 0 

Total 1,904 497 2,401 
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on Luthuli Museum 

I Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Luthuli Museum set out on pages 75 to 115
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Luthuli Museum as at 31 March 2024 and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

Basis for opinion 

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the
auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. I am independent of the public entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' International code of ethics for professional accountants (including

International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that
are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements 

6. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA
and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the
public entity's ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the public entity or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements 

8. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and to issue an

auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

9. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in

the annexure to this auditor's report. This description, which is located at page 69, forms part of

our auditor's report.

I Report on the annual performance report 

10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in

terms thereof, I must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported

performance information against predetermined objectives for the selected material

performance indicators presented in the annual performance report. The accounting authority

is responsible for the preparation of the annual performance report.

11. I selected the following material performance indicators related to business development

presented in the annual performance report for the year ended 31 March 2024. I selected those

indicators that measure the public entity's performance on its primary mandated functions and

that are of significant national, community or public interest.

• Number of museum artefacts acquired and valued

• Number of research field trips conducted for collection development

• Number of research documents produced for exhibitions

• Number of documents produced for museum publications

• Number of conference paper or newspaper opinion produced for public dissemination

• Number of permanent museum exhibitions upgraded

• Number of museum exhibitions staged

12. I evaluated the reported performance information for the selected material performance

indicators against the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting

framework, as defined in the general notice. When an annual performance report is prepared

using these criteria, it provides useful and reliable information and insights to users on the

public entity's planning and delivery on its mandate and objectives.
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13. I performed procedures to test whether:

• the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the

public entity's mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

• all the indicators relevant for measuring the public entity's performance against its primary

mandated and prioritised functions and planned objectives are included

• the indicators are well defined to ensure that they are easy to understand and can be

applied consistently, as well as verifiable so that I can confirm the methods and processes

to be used for measuring achievements

• the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time

bound and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be delivered and

by when, the required level of performance as well as how performance will be evaluated

• the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as

those committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

• the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the

prescribed manner

• there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for the reasons

provided for any over- or underachievement of targets

14. I performed the procedures to report material findings only; and not to express an assurance

opinion or conclusion.

15. I did not identify any material findings on the reported performance information for the selected

indicators.

Other matters 

16. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets 

17. The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned

targets and provides explanations for over- or underachievements.

18. The table that follows provides information on the achievement of planned targets and lists the

key indicator that was not achieved as reported in the annual performance report. The reasons

for any underachievement of targets are included in the annual performance report on pages 22
to 25.
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33. The accounting authority did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility over compliance

with applicable laws and regulations. In this regard, effective measures were not taken to

prevent irregular expenditure and ensure compliance with procurement and contract

management legislation.

34. Management did not implement and monitor the effectiveness of controls to ensure compliance

with applicable SCM requirements.

Pietermaritzburg 

31 July 2024 

A U D ITO R - GE N E R AL 

SO UT H AFRICA 

Auditing to build public confidence 
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E.2 Luthuli Museum Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Luthuli Museum 
Annual Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2024 
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Luthuli Museum 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Index 

The reports and statements set out below comprise of the Annual Financial Statements presented to the council: 

PAGE 
General Information 2 

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements 2 

Statement of Financial Position 3 

Statement of Financial Performance 4 

Statement of Changes in Equity 5 

Statement of Cash Flows 6 

Accounting Policies 7 - 21 

Notes to the Financial Statements 22 - 39 

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 40 - 42 
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Luthuli Museum 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

General Information 

Country of Incorporation and Domicile South Africa 

Nature of Business and Principal Activities The Luthuli Museum mandate is to preserve, 
educate, promote, grow and sustain the Legacy of 
Chief Albert Luthuli 

Director Mr. B Xaba 

The Council Members Prof. M Mchunu - Chairperson 
Hon. I Mkhize - Deceased 30/09/2023 
Mr. T Tsematse 
Ms. S Mabilane 
Mr. J Matlou 
Mr. S Dlamini 
Ms. S Mthembu 
Mr. S Luthuli 
Ms. S Masango - appointed 9/11/2023 

Audit Committee Ms. W Oelofse - Chairperson - appointed 21/10/2022 
Mr. T Tsematse - removed 31/10/2023 
Mr. J Matlou 
Mr. T Maphanga - appointed 31/10/2023 
Ms. M Nchabeleng 

Controlling entity National Department of Sport, Arts and Culture 

Registered Office 333 Nokukhanya Luthuli Street 
Groutville 
KwaDukuza 
4450 

Bankers First National Bank 

Preparer The financial statements were prepared internally by 
Mr. J Ncwane 

External Auditors Auditor-General South Africa 

Entity Secretary Not applicable 

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements 

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, as set out on pages 3 to 42 were 
approved by the Luthuli Museum Council on 31 May 2024 and were signed on its behalf on their behalf by: 

Prof. M Mchunu - Chairperson 
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Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Statement of Financial Position 
Figures in R Notes 2024 2023 

Assets 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 5 10,531,413 10,132,678 
Intangible assets 6 3,246 4,058 
Heritage assets 7 6,981,570 6,931,955 
Total non-current assets 17,516,229 17,068,691 

Current assets 
Inventories 8 28,199 31,732 
Trade and other receivables 9 58,367 81,548 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 11,091,032 11,637,637 
Total current assets 11,177,598 11,750,917 

Total assets 28,693,827 28,819,608 

Net assets and liabilities 
Net assets 
Accumulated surplus 27,457,013 27,201,416 

Current liabilities 
Provisions 11 448,827 362,066 
Trade and other payables 12 282,885 310,719 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 13 505,102 945,407 
Total current liabilities 1,236,814 1,618,192 

Total net assets and liabilities 28,693,827 28,819,608 
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Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Statement of Financial Performance 
Figures in R Notes 2024 2023 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
Government grants and subsidies 17 18,129,305 17,700,290 
Income from investments 504,799 349,800 
Donations received 49,756 - 
Income from loyalty programmes 14,446 - 
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 16 18,698,306 18,050,090 

Revenue from exchange transactions 
Tender deposits 29,145 - 
Sales - Books 9,565 2,680 
Sales - T-Shirts - 1,116
Sales - Caps - 56
Sales - Mugs 456 29
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - 174,555
Total revenue from exchange transactions 18 39,166 178,436 

Gross surplus 18,737,472 18,228,526 

Expenditure 
Administrative expenses 19 (1,263,921) (1,088,851) 
Amortisation 6 (811) (811)
Audit Fees 20 (1,294,517) (1,345,741)
Depreciation 5 (389,554) (220,636) 
Employee costs 21 (9,995,843) (8,928,911) 
Governance expenditure 22 (699,091) (1,004,751) 
Operating expenditure 23 (3,156,691) (2,823,703) 
Impairment loss 7 - (99,000)
Marketing expenditure 25 (1,681,447) (1,487,229)
Total expenditure (18,481,875) (16,999,633) 

Surplus from operating activities 255,597 1,228,893 
Surplus for the year 255,597 1,228,893 
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Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

Figures in R 
Accumulated 

surplus Total 

Balance at 1 April 2022 25,972,523 25,972,523 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the period 1,228,893 1,228,893 
Balance at 31 March 2023 27,201,416 27,201,416 

Balance at 1 April 2023 27,201,416 27,201,416 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the period 255,597 255,597 
Balance at 31 March 2024 27,457,013 27,457,013 
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Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Figures in R Notes 2024 
2023 

Restated 

Receipts 
Government grants and subsidies 17 17,689,000 17,687,000 
Tender deposits 29,145 - 
Sales - Books 9,565 2,680 
Sales - T-Shirts - 1,116
Sales - Caps - 56
Sales - Mugs 456 29
Donations received 140 - 
Income from investments 504,799 349,800 

18,233,105 18,040,681 
Payments 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (7,898,179) (8,081,468) 
Payments to and on behalf of employees (9,995,843) (8,928,911) 
Payments to suppliers for operating leases (111,847) (106,172) 

(18,005,869) (17,116,551) 
Net cash flows from operations 26 227,236 924,130 

Cash flows used in investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (773,841) (783,807) 
Purchase of buildings under construction - (222,569)
Purchase of heritage assets 7 - (199,270)
Cash flows used in investing activities (773,841) (1,205,646) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (546,605) (281,516) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 11,637,637 11,919,153 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10 11,091,032 11,637,637 
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1. General information

The entity is incorporated as a Schedule 3A Public Entity and domiciled in South Africa. The address of its registered
office is 333 Nokukhanya Luthuli Street, Groutville, KwaDukuza, 4450.

2. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

The Annual Financial Statements of Luthuli Museum have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice. The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting under the historical cost convention. They are presented in South African Rand.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the entity's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Definition 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that: 
• are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative

purposes; and
• are expected to be used during more than one period.

Recognition 
Property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity, and
• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Heritage assets assessed as having a dual function are recognised and disclosed in terms of the Standard of GRAP 
on Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17) and not the Standard of GRAP on Heritage Assets (GRAP 103) if a 
significant portion of the heritage asset is utilised for office accommodation. 

Initial measurement 
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. 
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost, except 
where the asset is acquired by way of a non-exchange transaction, where it is initially measured at fair value at the 
date of acquisition. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes: 
• its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and

rebates.
• any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management.
• the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,

the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the
item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
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Where an asset is acquired by the entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is 
deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired. 

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the entity expects to use 
them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in 
connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequent measurement - Cost model 
After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Land is not depreciated, as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation of an asset commences when it is available for use, and ceases at the date that the asset is 
derecognised. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the 
item is depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount 
of another asset. The depreciable amount of an asset shall be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. The 
depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. 

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year end. Where there are 
significant changes in the expected pattern of economic consumption of the benefits embodied in the asset, the relevant 
changes will be made to the residual values and depreciation rates, and the change will be accounted for as a change 
in accounting estimate. 

The measurement base, useful life or depreciation rate as well as the depreciation method for all major classes of 
assets are as follows: 
Asset class Measurement base Useful life Depreciation method 
Motor vehicles Historical cost 4-7 years Straight line 
Fixtures and fittings Historical cost 6-10 years Straight line 
Office equipment Historical cost 6-10 years Straight line 
Computer equipment Historical cost 3-6 years Straight line 

Derecognition 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised when the asset is disposed of or 
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is 
derecognised. Gains are classified as other gains on the face of the statement of financial performance. 

2.2 Heritage assets 

Definition 
Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic 
significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations. 

LUTMUS AR 2023-2024 / RP202/2024 
ISBN: 978-1-77997-119-7

81



Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Accounting Policies 

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued... 

Recognition 
A heritage asset is recognised as an asset when: 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity;

and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Dual purpose assets (used for service delivery and preserved and defined as a heritage asset) are only be classified 
as a heritage asset when a significant portion of the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset. 

Initial measurement 
A heritage asset that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured at its cost. Where a heritage asset is acquired 
through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement - Cost model 
After initial recognition, a class of heritage assets is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

Subsequent measurement - Revaluation model 
After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets, whose fair value can be measured reliably, shall be carried 
at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent impairment losses. 

If a heritage asset is revalued, the entire class of heritage assets to which that asset belongs are revalued. 

If the fair value cannot be determined reliably, heritage asset are measured using the cost model. The carrying amount 
of the heritage asset shall be its revalued amount at the date of the last revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Impairment 
Heritage assets are not depreciated, but at each reporting date an assessment is made as to whether there is any 
indication of impairment. Where such an indication exists, an estimate is made of the recoverable service amount or 
recoverable amount of the heritage asset, and the asset is written down immediately to this estimated recoverable 
service amount or recoverable amount. 

The resulting impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, except where the decrease reverses a 
previously recognised revaluation increase for the same asset the decrease is recognised directly in net assets to the 
extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus. 

Where the estimated impairment loss exceeds the carrying amount of the asset to which it relates, the resulting liability 
is only recognised if it is required by another standard. 

Compensation from third parties for items of heritage assets that were impaired, lost or given up are included in surplus 
or deficit when the compensation becomes receivable. 
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is only reversed if there is an indication that the impairment 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. This will occur when there was a change in the estimates used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable service amount or recoverable amount. An impairment is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment been recognised. 

A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, except where the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount. If the asset is carried at a revalued amount, the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
increase, and future depreciation charges are adjusted in future periods to allocate the revised carrying amount, less 
its residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
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2.3 Intangible assets 

Definition 
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The asset is determined to be 
identifiable if it either is separable, or arises from binding arrangements. 

Recognition 
An intangible asset is recognised when: 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity;

and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

An assessment of the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential that will flow to the entity as 
a result of the use of an asset is made by management before the asset is recognised. This includes using reasonable 
and supportive assumptions that represent a best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the 
useful life of the asset. 

Initial measurement 
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost except where the asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, 
in which case its initial cost at the date of acquisition will be its fair value at that date. 

Separately acquired assets are initially measured at their purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset 
for its intended use. 

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset. 

Acquisitions as part of a transfer of functions are initially measured at fair value at acquisition date. 

The cost of assets acquired through an exchange of assets is measured at fair value at acquisition date unless the fair 
value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable. The acquired asset is immediately 
measured in this way even if the asset given up cannot immediately be derecognised. If the acquired asset is not 
measured at fair value, its cost is measured using the carrying amount of the asset given up. If the transaction is in 
substance a non-exchange transaction, it is measured in terms of the accounting policies related to revenue from non-
exchange transactions. 

Internally generated intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, being the sum of expenditure from the date the 
recognition criteria for an intangible asset are met, bearing in mind the following additional criteria: 
• During the research phase, no intangible asset is recognised. Expenditure on research is recognised as an

expense when it is incurred.
• During the development phase, an intangible asset will be recognised only if the following can be demonstrated:

- it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
- there is an intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
- there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
- it is possible to demonstrate how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service

potential. including the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset
itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset.

- there are available financial, technical and other resources to complete the development of the intangible
asset as well as to use or sell the intangible asset;

- the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during the development phase can be reliably
measured.
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Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued... 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets. 

Expenditure on an intangible asset is recognised as an expense when it is incurred unless it is part of the cost of an 
intangible asset that meets the recognition criteria. Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognised as 
an expense is not recognised as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date. 

Subsequent measurement - Cost model 
After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Amortisation 
An intangible asset is regarded by the entity as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the 
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash 
inflows. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised, but is tested for impairment annually and 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The intangible asset's determination as 
having an indefinite useful life is also reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to 
support the indefinite useful life assessment. Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset as finite rather than 
indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. 

The useful life of an intangible asset that arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts) shall not 
exceed the period of the binding arrangement, but may be shorter depending on the period over which the entity 
expects to use the asset. If the binding arrangements (including rights from contracts) are conveyed for a limited term 
that can be renewed, the useful life of the intangible asset shall include the renewal period(s) only if there is evidence 
to support renewal by the entity without significant cost. 

For other intangible assets amortisation is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. Where an intangible 
asset has a residual value, the depreciable amount is determined after deducting its residual value. 

Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Amortisation ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised. 

The amortisation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential 
are expected to be consumed by the entity. If that pattern cannot be determined reliably, the straight line method is 
used. 

The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless this or another Standard permits or 
requires it to be included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

The residual values of intangibles assets are assumed zero unless: 
• there is a commitment by a third party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life; or
• there is an active market for the asset and:

- residual value can be determined by reference to that market; and
- it is probable that such a market will exist at the end of the asset's useful life.

Residual values as well as the useful lives of all assets are reviewed annually. Changes in residual values are treated 
as a change in estimate and treated in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. 
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The classification of useful lives and amortisation methods for the various classes of assets are as follows: 
Useful life 

Asset class 
Internally generated 

or other 
classifica- 

tion Useful life 
Amortisati 
on method 

Computer software other finite 3 - 6 years Straight 
line 

Retirements and disposals 
An asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its 
use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset shall be included in surplus or deficit when the 
asset is derecognised (unless GRAP 13 requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback). 

2.4 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

A financial asset is any asset that is: 
• cash;
• an equity instrument of another entity;
• a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity or to exchange financial assets

or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is: 
• a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity to exchange financial assets

or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of 
its liabilities. A residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 
• equity instruments or similar forms of unutilised capital;
• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as

forming part of an entity's net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the

net assets of an entity.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 
• its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity

price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the
case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the
'underlying');

• it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors; and

• it is settled at a future date.
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Financial instruments at fair value are financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 
• derivatives;
• combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
• instruments held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is held for trading if it is acquired or incurred

principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term, or on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking;

• non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair
value at initial recognition; and

• financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities with 
fixed or determinable payments, other than those that: 
• the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value; or
• are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that are not quoted in an active market, and whose 
fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value. These are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost. 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities on the statement of 
financial position. 

Trade and other payables 
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus direct transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. 

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. 

2.5 Trade and other recievables 

Prepayments consist of various payments that have been made in advance for goods and services to be received in 
future. Prepayments are measured at amortised cost, and are derecognised when the goods and services to which the 
prepayment relate have been received. 

2.6 Inventories 

Definition 
Inventories are assets: 
• in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
• held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or
• in the process of production for sale or distribution.
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Recognition 
Inventories are recognised as an asset when 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.

Measurement 
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, 
then their costs are their fair value at the date of the acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for 
• distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

In instances where inventories purchased on deferred settlement terms contain a financing element, that element is 
recognised as an interest expense over the period of the financing. 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost formula (or weighted average cost formula). 
The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity. 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and 
segregated for specific projects are assigned by using specific identification of their individual costs. 

2.7 Leases 

Definition 
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or series of payments the 
right to use an asset for an agreed period of time. A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. An operating lease is 
a lease other than a finance lease. 

Classification 
A lease is classified as a finance lease when it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease when it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005, in 
accordance with the transitional requirements of GRAP 3. 

Operating leases as lessee 
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term 
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern of the benefit obtained. 

LUTMUS AR 2023-2024 / RP202/2024 
ISBN: 978-1-77997-119-7

87



Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Accounting Policies 

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued... 

The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an 
operating lease asset or liability. 

2.8 Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A liability is a present obligation of the entity arising from past 
events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic 
benefits or service potential. 

A contingent liability is: 
• a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
• a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow

of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 

A provision is recognised when: 
• there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is 
the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation shall be reflected in the amount of a 
provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. 

Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not be taken into account in measuring a provision. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received when the obligation is 
settled. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement will not 
exceed the amount of the provision. 

In the statement of financial performance, the expense relating to a provision is presented net of the amount 
recognised for a reimbursement. 

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle 
the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for deficits from future operating activities. 

The present obligation (net of recoveries) under an onerous contract is recognised and measured as a provision. 
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A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when: 
• there is a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least the activity/operating unit or part of an

activity/operating unit concerned, the principal locations affected, the location, function, and approximate number
of employees who will be compensated for terminating their services, the expenditures that will be undertaken and
when the plan will be implemented; and

• there has been raised a valid expectation in those affected that the restructuring will be carried out by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or 
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are 
both necessarily entailed by the restructuring, and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity. 

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the obligation can be made. 

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee, it is considered in determining the best estimate 
of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity considers that 
an outflow of economic resources is probable, the entity recognises the obligation at the higher of: 
• the amount determined using the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets.
• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised, but details are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial 
statements. 

2.9 Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result 
in the outflow of cash. Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the 
financial statements, if both the following criteria are met: 

• contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and

• contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity - therefore salary.
Commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

2.10 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Definition 
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows 
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in 
exchange. 
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Revenue from exchange transactions consists primarily of services charges, rentals, interest received and other 
services rendered. 

When considering the probability of the future economic benefits that will flow to the entity, consideration is given to 
the requirements as outlined in IGRAP 1. 

Measurement 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

2.11 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, 
which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions consists primarily of grants from National - and Provincial Government. 

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and 
can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an 
entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives 
value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service 
potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be 
used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if 
not deployed as specified. 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of 
a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity. 

Recognition 
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to 
the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non- 
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises 
an amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 

When considering the probability of the future economic benefits that will flow to the entity, consideration is given to 
the requirements as outlined in IGRAP 1. 
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Accounting Policies 

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued... 

Measurement 
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by 
the entity. 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent 
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise 
a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required 
to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. 
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of 
the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue. 

Transfers 
The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset 
and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind 
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. 

Conditional grants and receipts 

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the 
entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the 
criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised. 

2.12 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted 
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the

undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset
(see, for example, the Standards of GRAP on Inventories, Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Heritage Assets).

Bonus, incentive and performance related payments 
The expected cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payments as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A 
present obligation exists when there is no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 

2.13 Government grants 

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or 
future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. They exclude those forms of 
government assistance which cannot reasonably have a value placed upon them and transactions with government 
which cannot be distinguished from the normal trading transactions of the entity. 
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Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued... 

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are not recognised until there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
• the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
• the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in surplus or deficit on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related 
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate are expensed. 

2.14 Related parties 

A related party is a person or entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant 
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. As a 
minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity: 
• A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

- has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
- has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
- is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity.

• An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
- The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same economic entity (which means that each

controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);
- One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a

member of a group of which the other entity is a member);
- Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
- One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
- The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity

or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the reporting entity;

- The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified as a related party;
- A person identified as having control or joint control over the reporting entity has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the management of the entity (or its controlling entity).
- The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services

to the reporting entity or to the controlling entity of the reporting entity;

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related 
party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

2.15 Events after the reporting date 

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting 
date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting

date); and
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting

date).

The entity will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting 
date. 

The entity will not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after the 
reporting date. 

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the entity discloses the nature and an estimate of the 
financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made. 
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Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued... 

2.16 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature 
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 
performance. 

2.17 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is 
not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 
(Act No. 1 of 1999), the State Tender Board Act, 1968, or any regulations made in terms of that Act. Irregular 
expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. 

Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the statement of financial performance and where recovered, 
it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

The entity makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by 
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed 
below. 

3.1.1 Useful lives and residual values 

These estimates are based on industry norms. Management will increase the depreciation charge prospectively where 
useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives. Management will decrease the depreciation charge 
prospectively where useful lives are more than previously estimated useful lives. Where changes are made to the 
estimated residual lives, management also makes these changes prospectively. 

4. New standards and interpretations

In the current year, the Museum has not adopted any standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations.

The Museum has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the entity's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2024 or later periods:
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New standards and interpretations continued... 

Standard Standard effective 
date 

Adopted in the 
current year 

(Y/N) 

Expected impact 

GRAP  1  (amendments  related  to  going 
concern) - Presentation of Financial 
Statements 

01/04/2025 N Unlikely to have a 
material impact 

GRAP 103 (amendments) - Heritage Assets TBD N Unlikely to have a 
material impact 

iGRAP22 - Foreign Currency Transactions 
and Advanced Consideration 

01/04/2025 N Unlikely to have a 
material impact 

GRAP 105, GRAP 106 and GRAP 107 
(amendments) - Transfer of Functions and 
Mergers 

TBD N Unlikely to have a 
material impact 

Improvements to Standards of GRAP (2023) TBD N Unlikely to have a 
material impact 

Guideline - The Application of Materiality to 
Financial Statements 

TBD N Unlikely to have a 
material impact 

The Museum expects to adopt the amendments for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the 
amendment. 
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Luthuli Museum 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Figures in R 2024 2023 

Property, plant and equipment continued... 

5.2 Additional disclosures 

Building - work in progress 
The construction of the building is taking longer than the significant period due to awaiting for the approval of the 
certificate of occupancy from the KwaDukuza Local Municipality. 
This is a temporary arrangement. This building is in the process of being transferred to the Department of Public 
Works upon receipt of the certificate of occupancy from the KwaDukuza Local Municipality. 

6. Intangible assets

Reconciliation of changes in intangible assets

Computer 
software Total 

Reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2024 
Balance at 1 April 2023 
At cost 54,271 54,271 
Accumulated amortisation (50,213)  (50,213)  
Net book value 4,058 4,058 

Movements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
Amortisation (812) (812)
Intangible assets at end of period 3,246 3,246 

Closing balance at 31 March 2024 
At cost 54,271 54,271 
Accumulated amortisation (51,025)  (51,025)  
Net book value 3,246 3,246 

Reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2023 
Balance at 1 April 2022 
At cost 54,271 54,271 
Accumulated amortisation (49,402)  (49,402)  
Net book value 4,869 4,869 

Movements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
Amortisation (811) (811)
Intangible assets at end of period 4,058 4,058 

Closing balance at 31 March 2023 
At cost 54,271 54,271 
Accumulated amortisation (50,213)  (50,213)  
Net book value 4,058 4,058 
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Heritage assets continued... 

7.2 Additions 
For recognition of heritage assets, the asset needs to be controlled by the Luthuli Museum as a result of the past 
events. Such events may include: purchases, donations, bequeath, loans or transfer. 

7.3 Heritage assets on loan from other entity 
No loan agreements have been concluded with any other entity. 

7.4 Restrictions on title and disposal of heritage assets 
There are no restrictions on heritage assets title and disposal thereof. 

7.5 Net carrying amount of heritage assets pledged as security for liabilities 
There are no heritage assets that have been pledged as security for any financial liabilities. 

7.6 Amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition, maintenance and restoration of heritage assets 
There are no contractual commitments for the acquisition, maintenance and restoration of heritage assets. 

7.7 Revaluation of heritage assets 
Luthuli Museum is in custody of items of heritage assets in the form of documents, photographs, books, audio- visuals, 
paintings and other artefacts which were evaluated on the 04/05/2024 by independent valuer: Paul Myson, a Fellow of 
the International Fine Art and Antiques Appraisers Association. 

7.8 Impairment losses and reversals 
GRAP 103.59 requires that an entity shall assess heritage assets for indications of impairment at each reporting date. 
If any such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of each 
heritage asset. 

Indicators of impairment include but are not limited to the following; 
External sources of information: 
- Significant decline of the asset's market value more than expected as a result of passage of time or normal use.
- The absence of an active market for a revalued heritage asset.
Internal sources of information:
- Evidence is available of physical damage or deterioration of the heritage asset.
- A decision to halt the construction of the heritage asset before it is complete or in A usable form.

7.9 Loss control register 
The Luthuli Museum maintains a loss control register. This register contains items that have been accessioned but 
cannot be located. At the end of the 2023/24 financial year the register comprised of items of the value of R4 325 
and the items that were duplicated amounted to R2 900. 

7.10 Backlog register 
The Luthuli Museum maintains a backlog register which comprises of books and photographs which are at the 
Museum but are not accompanied by ownership documents or legal transfers from donors. This backlog register is 
valued on an annual basis as all assets acquired by means of purchase will initially be measured at cost. Where no 
cost can be determined the fair value will be determined as at the date of recognition. 

As at 31 March 2024, the backlog was valued at R17 495. 
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8. Inventories

Inventories comprise:

Inventory - books 25,849 29,382 
Inventory - DVDs 2,350 2,350 

28,199 31,732 
9. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables comprise the following balances

Loans and other receivables - staff loans 40,398 63,406 
Prepayment - rental 17,969 18,142 

58,367 81,548 

10. Cash and cash equivalents

10.1 Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 

Cash 
Balances with banks 6,742,706 7,315,062 
Total cash 6,742,706 7,315,062 

Cash equivalents 
Short term deposits 4,348,326 4,322,575 
Total cash equivalents 4,348,326 4,322,575 

Total cash and cash equivalents included in 
current assets 

11,091,032 11,637,637 

Net cash and cash equivalents 11,091,032 11,637,637 

10.2 Securities provided 

Description Details 
FNB credit card Funds held on the FNB money market account amounting to 

R50 000 have been pledged as security for the Luthuli Museum 
credit card facility. 

10.3 Detail of cash and cash equivalent balances 

Bank balances 
FNB current account 4,011,709 4,799,128 
FNB 32 day deposit account 2,730,997 2,515,934 
Total 6,742,706 7,315,062 

Short term deposits 
FNB money market account 4,348,326 4,322,575 
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11. Provisions

Other provisions

Provision for 
leave pay 

Provision for 
service bonus Total 

Balance at 1 April 2023 109,973 252,093 362,066 
Reductions in the carrying amounts of provisions resulting from 
remeasurement of the estimated future outflow of economic 
benefits of the provisions without cost to the entity - (13,911) (13,911) 
Increase through adjustments arising from passage of time 100,672 - 100,672
Total changes 100,672 (13,911) 86,761 
Balance at 31 March 2024 210,645 238,182 448,827 

12. Trade and other payables

12.1 Trade and other payables comprise: 

Trade payables 122,750 117,712 
Accrued expense 143,000 143,000 
Credit card 17,135 50,007 

282,885 310,719 

12.2 Additional disclosures 

The accrued expense is a contingency fee to be paid to MVY Construction upon receipt of the certificate of 
occupancy from KwaDukuza Local Municipality as per Note 5.2. 
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13. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprise the following balances

Special project 
grant 

Heritage 
assets grant 

Feasibility 
study grant Total 

Balance as 01 April 2022 700,000 99,516 159,181 958,697 
Grants received - - - - 
Grants transferred to revenue (4,320) (8,970) - (13,290)
Balance as 31 March 2023 695,680 90,546 159,181 945,407 

Grants received - - - - 
Grants transferred to revenue (440,305) - - (440,305) 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 255,375 90,546 159,181 505,102 

Additional disclosure 

Heritage assets grant 
The Heritage Assets Grant comprises of funds received from the Department of Sports, Arts and Culture for 
assisting the Luthuli Museum to evaluate the Heritage Assets in order to determine the market values of inclusion in 
the Statement of Financial Position. 

The Heritage Assets Conditional Grant balance at 31 March 2024 amounts to R90 546. 

Feasibility study grant 
The Feasibility Study Grant comprises of funds received from the Department of Sports, Arts and Culture for assisting 
the Luthuli Museum with the feasibility study of the creation of the Chief Albert Luthuli Memorial Site. 

The Feasibility Study Grant balance at 31 March 2024 amounts to R159 181. 

Special project grant 
The Special Project Grant comprises of funds received from the Department of Sports, Arts and Culture for the Public 
Art Mural Project that will take place at the Chief Albert Luthuli Monument Site in eThembeni. The funding is under 
the umbrella of the Presidential Employment Stimulus Programme (PESP) aimed at youth employment creation. 

The Special Projects Grant expenditure was transferred to revenue amounts to R440 305 and the Special Projects 
Grant balance at 31 March 2024 amounts to R255 375. 

14. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

14.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current year - 17,337

14.2 Details of incidents of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Incident 
The fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred to date comprises of interest and 
penalties paid to the South African Receiver of Revenue Services. 

- 17,337
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15. Irregular expenditure

15.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure - current year 838,392 2,211,001 

15.2 Details of incidents of irregular expenditure 

Incident 
Irregular expenditure relates to contracts of various service providers that were 
extended without following competitive bidding procedures 

191,573  371,996  

Irregular expenditure relates to SBD 4 not completed by service providers 66,717  
Irregular expendire relates to deviations not justifiable various service providers. 27,966  230,471  
Irregular expenditure relates to evaluation criteria not the same as the invitation for 
quotation 

338,885  -  

Irregular expenditure relates to transactions procure without criteria - 1,608,534  
Irregular expenditure relates to quotations not evaluated based on PPPFA (points 
system) 

213,252  -  

838,393  2,211,001  

16. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprise:

Donations received 49,756 - 
Income from investments 504,799 349,800 
Income from royalty programmes 14,446 - 
Government grants and subsidies (Note 17.) 18,129,305 17,700,290 

18,698,306 18,050,090 

17. Government grants and subsidies

Government grants and subsidies comprise:

Operating grants
Government grants and subsidies - operating 17,689,000 17,695,970 

Capital and special grants
Government grants and subsidies - capital 440,305 4,320 

18,129,305 17,700,290 
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18. Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions comprise:

Tender deposits 29,145 - 
Sales - Books 9,565 2,680 
Sales - T-Shirts - 1,116
Sales - Caps - 56 
Sales - Mugs 456 29 
Profit on sale of property, plant and
equipment

- 174,555

39,166 178,436 

19. Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses comprise:

HR - administrative fees 170,839 132,175 
Lease rental on operating lease 111,847 106,172 
Training 76,621 56,886 
Bank charges 18,211 20,756 
Computer expenses 547,390 504,709 
Postage 3,003 4,493 
Printing and stationery 146,999 74,741 
Telephone and fax 189,011 188,919 

1,263,921 1,088,851 

20. Audit fees

Audit fees comprise:

Internal audit 254,784 376,119 
Statutory audit 1,039,733 969,622 

1,294,517 1,345,741 
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21. Employee costs

Employee costs comprises:

Basic salaries 4,434,668 3,657,135 
Casual wages 6,645 5,394 
Medical aid contributions 576,460 496,956 
Pension fund contributions 1,161,733 1,707,512 
Annual leave provision 100,673 (315,287)  
Service bonus provision (13,911)  6,499 
Salaries and wages 6,266,268 5,558,209 

Director 1,323,600 1,156,311 
Finance manager 975,424 942,788 
Curator 768,125 682,778 
Marketing manager 662,426 588,824 
Management emoluments 3,729,575 3,370,701 

9,995,843 8,928,910 

22. Governance expenditure

Governance expenditure comprise:

Honorarium fee 699,091 1,004,751 

23. Operating expenses

Operating expenses comprise:

Cleaning 40,967 38,910 
Consulting, contractors and special services 940,534 561,876 
Donations 4,625 - 
Electricity and water 333,476 217,920 
Entertainment 55,461 45,193 
Generator diesel 94,690 - 
Insurance 216,887 166,901 
Repairs and maintenance 535,182 724,296 
Travel and accommodation - Council 475,600 586,517 
Travel and subsistence 459,269 482,090 

3,156,691 2,823,703 

24. Marketing expenditure

Marketing expenditure comprise:

Advertising and promotions 342,461 160,123 
Public programmes - Other 1,039,810  831,159  
Public programmes - Luthuli lecture 284,066  199,895  
Public programmes - Luthuli walk
Exhibitions

- 
15,110 

 296,052 
- 
 

1,681,447 1,487,229 
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25. Income tax expense

Additional disclosures

Luthuli Museum is a Schedule 3A Public Entity that is exempted from income taxation under section 10(1)(cN)(I) of
the Income Tax Act.

26. Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus for the year 255,597 1,228,893 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 390,365 221,447 
Impairment losses and reversal of
impairment losses recognised in surplus or
deficit

- 99,000

Profit or loss on sale of non-current assets - (174,555)
Income from loyalty programmes (14,446) - 
Donations - non cash (49,616) - 
Grants transferred to revenue (440,305) (13,290) 

Change in operating assets and
liabilities:
Adjustments for decrease/(increase) in inventories 3,533 (23,298) 
Adjustments for decrease/(increase) in prepayments 23,181 (43,313) 
Adjustments for increase in other operating
payables

(27,834) (61,964) 

Adjustments for provisions 86,761 (308,790) 
Net cash flows from operations 227,236 924,130 

27. Events after the reporting date

No events or circumstances arising after the reporting date have come to the attention of management that would
require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements.

28. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The Accounting authority believes that the entity has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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29. Operational commitments

Commitments in respect of operational expenditure:

Approved as at 31 March 
2024 

Siyajabula 
Security Services Morar Inc 

Boss 
Technical 
Solutions 

Ukukhanya 
Advisory 
Services Total 

Contract price/(extension) 245,747 - 252,440 183,580  681,767 
Paid to date - - - (120,973)  (120,973) 
Total 245,747 - 252,440 62,607 560,794 

Approved as at 31 March 
2023 
Contract price/(extension) 1,474,843 391,166 430,860 - 2,296,869
Paid to date (1,120,917)  (376,389)  (243,538)  - (1,740,844)
Total 353,926 14,777 187,322 - 556,025

30. Financial risk management

30.1 Financial risk factors 
The Luthuli Museum activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value 
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Luthuli Museum overall 
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the Luthuli Museum financial performance. The Luthuli Museum uses derivative financial 
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. 

Risk management is carried out by the Luthuli Museum Council which identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks 
in close co-operation with the Audit Committee which provides written principles for overall risk management, as well 
as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and use of 
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity. 

30.2 Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as the interest rates will affect the Luthuli Museum's 
income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing return. 

30.2.1 Foreign exchange risk 
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that arises from the exposure of foreign currency transactions and the fluctuations 
in the forex market. The Luthuli Museum does not engage in foreign currency transactions and is not exposed to this 
risk. 

30.2.2 Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises from exposure to credit facilities. The Luthuli Museum maintain a business credit 
card facility which it uses for air travel arrangements and e-commerce transactions. The payment plan is through debit 
order against the current account thus limiting exposure to interest charges. 

30.2.3 Fair values 
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are the same as the carrying values reflected in the statement of 
financial position. 
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Financial risk management continued... 

30.3 Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Luthuli Museum if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations and rises principally from Luthuli Museum' receivables from customers, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalents held with banking institutions. 

Trade and other receivables 
The Luthuli Museum has no significant exposure to credit risk, the credit risk applicable to Luthuli Museum amounted 
to R0 for the year ended 31 March 2024. 

Investments 
The Luthuli Museum limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in high liquid investments that are held only at 
the approved banking institution with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest 
rate risk 

30.4 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Luthuli Museum will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Luthuli Museum's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the Luthuli Museum's reputation. 

It is the policy of the Luthuli Museum, in line with the National Department of Sport, Arts and Culture not to borrow 
monies. The Luthuli Museum maintain a business credit card which it uses for air travel arrangements and e- 
commerce transactions. 

Trade and other payables 
The Luthuli Museum is only exposed to liquidity risk with regard to the payment of its payables. These payables are 
all due within the short-term. 

31. Lease rental on operating lease

Operating lease commitments - Mr. M Guma
Due in 12 months 77,264 70,240 
Due in 2-3 years 19,765 97,029 

97,029 167,269 

Operating lease commitments - Mrs. S Guma 
Due in 12 months 51,343 46,675 
Due in 2-3 years 56,477 107,820 

107,820 154,495 
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32. Prior period errors

Non-cash items or amounts
The comparative information on the Statement of Cash Flows was restated to exclude non-cash items or amounts,
namely; grants transferred to revenue and profit on a motor vehicle that was traded in.

The correction of the error results in the following adjustments:
As previously 

reported 
Correction of 

error 
Restated 

Statement of Cash Flows: Extract 2023 
Cash flows from operations 
Receipts 
Government grants and subsidies 17,700,290 (13,290) 17,687,000 
Tender deposits 
Payments 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services 

174,555 

8,491,881 

(174,555) 

(450,413) 

- 

8,041,468 

Cash flows used in investing activities 
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 190,000 (190,000) - 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (973,808)  190,001 (783,807) 
Purchase of buildings under construction - (222,569) (222,569) 

33. Comparative information restated

The Luthuli Museum comparative information has been restated.
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34. Related parties

Relationships

Controlling entity National Department of Sport, Arts and Culture 

Executive authority Minister of Sports, Arts and Culture 
All entities which fall under the portfolio of 
Minister of Sport, Arts and Culture 

Accounting authority The Council Members 

Custodian of immovable assets National Department of Public Works and 
Infrastructure 

Related party balances 

National Department of Sport, Arts and Culture 
Operational grant 17,689,000 17,695,970 
Conditional grant 440,305 4,320 

18,129,305 17,700,290 

Council members fees paid: 

Dr. A Luthuli - retired 28/08/2022 - 3,484
Prof. M Mchunu 127,652 124,470
Hon I Mkhize - deceased 30/09/2023 60,617 187,830
Mr. J Matlou 82,570 95,044 
Mr. S Dlamini 60,297 99,949 
Mr. S Luthuli 25,130 9,847 
Mr. S Mabilane 67,779 110,072 
Mr. T Tsematse 61,030 121,384 
Ms. B Chiliza - resigned 03/09/2022 - 43,170
Ms. S Mthembu 71,980 103,792
Ms. M Nchabeleng 13,332 16,188 
Ms. W Oelofse - appointed 21/10/2022 66,690 40,220 
South African National Deaf Association * 48,524 49,300 
Mr. T Maphanga - appointed 31/10/2023 13,490 - 
Ms. S Masango - appointed 09/11/2023 - - 

699,091 1,004,750 

Senior management 3,729,575 3,370,701 
4,428,666 4,375,451 

* South Afican National Deaf Association is not a council member but a deaf
association assisting Mr. S Dlamini.

35 Budget information and explanation of differences 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
Figures in R 2024 2023 

 

35.1 This is a subsidy income received from DSAC. 
35.2 This income is for the special project called Public Art Mural Project.The funding is under the Presidential 

Employment Stimulus Programme (PESP) aimed at youth employment creation. 
35.3 Income from book sales. 
35.4 Sales from branded mugs. 
35.5 Income from tender deposits. 

35.6.1 Our grant allocation for the year is not enough for all operational expenses. What we normally do is to top up with the 
savings. There was no transfer in the current year because we had enough money till the end of the year. 

35.6.2 Donations received for assets. 
35.7 Interest received from FNB investment accounts, funds which are not used are invested into these accounts to earn 

interest until they are utilised. We do not budget for the interest received as we are not in the investment business. 
35.8 Internal audit contract is still continuing with R120 973 paid and R62 607 still owing on the contract value of R183 

580. All Auditor General invoices were paid in full.
35.9 General savings on security costs, the security contract expired in December 2023 and it was extended to 30 

September 2023. 
35.10.1 This was a savings on adverts and promotion for the events. 
35.10.2 a) SHRC event request, payment was done by Luthuli Museum for other activities as the event was decided late. 

b) Black History Month catering: Supplier prices were higher than the estimated costs as per motivation analysis.
c) Time of The Writer: The initial catering spec for Time of The Writer was sandwiches for learners and platters for
adults. Due to the poor service received from Black History Month event it was decided to switch to plated food.

35.10.3 No variance. 
35.10.4 Only one exhibition performed which was Amasosha KaLuthuli. 

35.11 This was a general savings on bank charges. 
35.12 General saving on expenses. 
35.13 General saving on expenses. 
35.14 General saving on expenses. 
35.15 Depreciation expense was lower than expected/budgeted. 
35.16 Amortisation expense was lower than expected/budgeted. 
35.17 Savings on donation because there were no donation paid in the 4th quarter. 
35.18 General saving on expenses. 
35.19 General saving on expenses. 
35.20 General saving on expenses. 
35.21 General saving on expenses. 
35.22 General saving on expenditure on rental for staff and visitor parking on the Guma Family property. 
35.23 There were no legal fee costs incurred in the current year. 
35.24 General saving on expenditure. 
35.25 General saving on expenditure. 
35.26 General saving on expenditure. 
35.27 The grant allocation for the year is not enough for all operational expenses. What we normally do is to top up with the 

savings. Two positions were vacant towards the end of the year which is HR Practioner and Project Officer. In the 
current year, the museum did not do the Fun Walk and Run is costing us R 750 000. Hence why there was this saving. 

35.28 Average saving on casual wages. 
35.29 No subscription paid during the year. 
35.30 Savings because SCM and Graphics Design were the only trainings attended in the current year. 
35.31 Uniform for garden staff was purchased in the current year. The uniforms for cleaning staff was budgeted for in the 

current year but not bought. The uniforms will be acquired in May 2024. 
35.32 General saving on expenditure because some staff members used their personal cellphones for outside calls. 
35.33 General saving on expenditure. 
35.34 General saving on expenditure. 
35.35 Savings as a result that most of the meetings were conducted online and physical meetings were reduced. 
35.36 Savings due to reduced number of Council meetings in the current year. 
35.37 This is the PESP Mural Art Project which is a specialized projects for the Artists. The majority of this budget was 

used in June and August 2023. We now have the balance of R255 375 remaining. 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Figures in R 
Statement of financial performance 

Approved 

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

 
Variance 

35 budget basis actual percentage 
Subsidy Income 35.1 17,689,000 17,689,000 - - 
PESP Public Art Project 35.2 - 440,305 (440,305) (100.00) 
Sales - Books 35.3 - 9,565 (9,565) (100.00) 
Sales - Mugs 35.4 -  456 (456) (100.00)
Sales - DVD 1,000 - 1,000 100.00
Tender deposits 35.5 - 29,145 (29,145) (100.00)
Donations received 35.6.2 50,000 49,756 244 0.49 
Transfer from investments 35.6.1 2,925,236 2,925,236 100.00 
Income from investments 35.7 - 504,799 (504,799) (100.00) 
Income from loyalty programmes - 14,446 (14,446) (100.00) 
Total revenue 20,665,236 18,737,472 1,927,764 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Figures in R 

 

Expenditure 
Audit fees 35.8 (1,397,234) (1,294,517) (102,717) 7.35 
Security 
Advertising 

Adverts and promotions 

35.9 

35.10.1 

(581,722) 
- 

(343,274) 

(450,537) 
- 

(342,461) 

(131,185) 
- 

(813) 

22.55 

0.24 
Public programs 35.10.2 (1,040,000)  (1,039,810)  (190) 0.02
Luthuli lecture 35.10.3 (284,066)  (284,066)  - -
Exhibitions 35.10.4 (100,000)  (15,110)  (84,890) 84.89 

Bank charges 35.11 (33,000)  (18,211)  (14,789) 44.82 
Cleaning 35.12 (43,931)  (40,967)  (2,964) 6.75 
Computer expenses 35.13 (583,000)  (547,390)  (35,610) 6.11 
Consulting fees (61,388)  (45,000)  (16,388) 26.70 
Postage 35.14 (10,409)  (3,003)  (7,406) 71.15 
Depreciation 35.15 (396,184)  (389,554)  (6,630) 1.67 
Amortisation 35.16 (816) (811) (5) 0.61
Donations 35.17 (6,061)  (4,625) (1,436) 23.69
Electricity and water 35.18 (308,634)  (333,476)  24,842 (8.05)
Entertainment 35.19 (55,612)  (55,461)  (151) 0.27
Admin fees - other 35.20 (186,829)  (170,839)  (15,990) 8.56
Insurance 35.21 (221,740)  (216,887)  (4,853) 2.19
Lease rental on operating lease 35.22 (145,609)  (111,847)  (33,762) 23.19 
Legal expense 35.23 (173,491)  - (173,491) 100.00 
Motor vehicle expense 35.24 (160,000)  (147,700)  (12,300) 7.69 
Printing and stationery 35.25 - - - - 

Annual rep and broch (96,308)  (86,259)  (10,049) 10.43 
Stationery (87,879)  (60,740)  (27,139) 30.88 

Repairs and maintenance 35.26 (550,808)  (535,182)  (15,626) 2.84 
Employee expense - salaries 35.27 (11,127,698)  (9,989,198)  (1,138,500) 10.23 
Employee expense - casual wages 35.28 (10,000)  (6,645)  (3,355) 33.55 
Subscriptions 35.29 (985)  - (985) 100.00
Training 35.30 (180,371)  (76,621)  (103,750) 57.52
Protective clothing 35.31 (21,593)  (4,692)  (16,901) 78.27 
Telephone 35.32 (85,240)  (61,617)  (23,623) 27.71 
Other communication cost 35.33 (128,272)  (127,394)  (878) 0.68
Travel - local 35.34 (315,337)  (311,569)  (3,768) 1.19
Travel - overseas 35.35 (579,404)  (475,600)  (103,804) 17.92 
Honoraria 35.36 (1,244,660)  (699,091)  (545,569) 43.83 
Petrol and diesel (103,681)  (94,690)  (8,991) 8.67 
Total expenses (20,665,236) (18,041,570) (2,623,666) 

Surplus for the year - 695,902 (2,623,666)  

Capital projects 
PESP public art project cost 35.37 (695,680) (440,305) (255,375) 37 

(695,680) (440,305) (255,375) 

Net surplus for the year (695,680) 255,597 (3,134,416) 
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Figures in R 

 

Capital additions 
Motor vehicles - 254,999 (254,999) (100.00) 
Fixtures and fittings - 298,599 (298,599) (100.00) 
Office equipment - 52,443 (52,443) (100.00) 
Computer equipment - 182,249 (182,249) (100.00) 
Works of art - cost - 46,850 (46,850) (100.00) 
Contents of Luthuli House - 3,900 (3,900) (100.00) 
Collections of rare books - cost - 3,740 (3,740) (100.00) 
Collections of manuscripts - cost - 5,850 (5,850) (100.00) 
Collections of records - cost - 1,500 (1,500) (100.00) 

- 850,130 (850,130) 
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